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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 

 
Board of Commissioners 
The Housing Authority of the City of Trenton 
Trenton, New Jersey 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Housing Authority of the City of Trenton as 
of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements as listed in 
the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Authority’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
qualified audit opinion. 
 
Basis for Qualified Opinion 
Measurement procedures have not been performed on the Authority’s Other Post Employment Benefit 
(OPEB) Plan applicable to the year ended December 31, 2020.  Generally accepted accounting principles 
require that the OPEB Plan liability, and associated deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of 
resources and applicable benefit or expense be measured as of a date no earlier than the end of the 
employer’s prior reporting period.  The last measurement performed on the Authority’s OPEB Plan was June 
30, 2019.  We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the OPEB Plan liability 
balance, associated deferred outflows of resources balance, deferred inflows of resources balance or the 
applicable benefit or expense.  Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments to 
these amounts were necessary. 
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Qualified Opinion 
In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the Authority as of December 31, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position 
and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 8 through 16, the Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 
on page 48, the Schedule of Employer’s Required Contributions (Pension) on page 49, the Schedule of 
Changes in Benefit Terms and Assumptions Applied (Pension) on page 50, the Schedule of Proportionate 
Share of Net OPEB Liability on page 51 and the Schedule of Changes in Benefit Terms and Assumptions 
Applied (OPEB) on page 52 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements 
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures 
to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability, 
the Schedule of Employer’s Required Contributions (Pension) and the Schedule of Changes in Benefit Terms 
and Assumptions Applied (Pension) in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, 
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Management has omitted data pertaining to the Authority’s year ended December 31, 2020 reporting period 
from the Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net OPEB Liability and the Schedule of Changes in Benefit 
Terms and Assumptions Applied (OPEB) presented on pages 50 and 51, that accounting principles accepted 
in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such 
missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  Our qualified 
opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 
 
Other Information 
Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements.  Supplementary data is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  The accompanying Financial 
Data Schedule is presented for the Department of Housing and Urban Development’s information and is not 
a required part of the basic financial statements.  The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
The Financial Data Schedule, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and other supplementary 
data are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting data and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting data 
and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America.  In our opinion, except for the effects on the supplementary information of the qualified opinion 
on the basic financial statements as explained in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ paragraph, the information 
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 7, 2022 
on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose 
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting 
or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 
 

 
 
 
Birmingham, Alabama 
March 7, 2022 
 



 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 

 
 
Board of Commissioners 
The Housing Authority of the City of Trenton 
Trenton, New Jersey 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Authority, as of and for the 
year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 7, 2022. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weakness may exist that 
have not been identified 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
 
 
 
 
 

Aprio, LLP 1200 Corporate Drive, Suite 200, Birmingham, Alabama 35242      205.991.5506                                         Aprio.com 
 
Independently Owned and Operated Member of Morison KSi 



 

 

 
 
 
 
Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Birmingham, Alabama 
March 7, 2022 
 
 



 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
 
 

Board of Commissioners 
The Housing Authority of the City of Trenton 
Trenton, New Jersey 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
We have audited the Authority’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 
OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the Authority’s major federal 
programs for the year ended December 31, 2020.  The Authority’s major federal programs are identified in 
the Summary of Auditor’s Results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 
   
Management’s Responsibility  
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants 
applicable to its federal programs. 
   
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the Authority’s major federal programs based 
on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Authority’s compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances.   
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal 
programs.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Authority’s compliance. 
 
Opinion on Each Major Program 
In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of the major federal programs for the year ended 
December 31, 2020.   
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the Authority’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal programs to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing  an opinion on 
compliance for the major federal programs and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Authority’s internal control over compliance.   
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance with a compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over 
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may 
exist that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of our testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  
 
 

 
Birmingham, Alabama 
March 7, 2022 
 



THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TRENTON 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 
 
 

The Housing Authority of the City of Trenton’s (“the Authority”) Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
is designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of 
the Authority’s financial activity, (c) identify changes in the Authority’s financial position (its ability to 
address the next and subsequent year challenges), and (d) identify individual program issues or 
concerns. 
 
Since the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year’s 
activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the Authority’s 
financial statements. 
 
  

 
Financial Highlights 

 

• The Authority’s net position increased $1.9 million during 2020.  Net Position was $15 million 
and $16.9 million for 2019 and 2020, respectively. 

 
 

• Revenues increased by $1.1 million during 2020, and were $21.4 million and $22.5 million for 
2019 and 2020, respectively. 

 
 

• Expenses increased by $.1 million and were $20.5 million for 2019 and $20.6 million for 2020, 
respectively. 
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USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 
 
 

The Report includes three major sections, the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(MD&A)”, “Basic Financial Statements”, and “Other Required Supplementary Information”: 

 
 
 

 
MD&A 

 
 ~ MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION  

AND ANALYSIS ~ 
 

 
 

 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
~ AUTHORITY-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ 

~ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ 
 

 
 

 
OTHER REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 
~ REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ~ 

(OTHER THAN MD&A) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9



Authority-Wide Financial Statements 
 
 
Statement of Net Position 
 
These Statements include a Statement of Net Position, which is similar to a Balance Sheet.  The 
Statement of Net Position reports all financial and capital resources for the Authority.  The statement is 
presented in the format in which assets and deferred outflows of resources, equal liabilities, deferred 
inflows of resources and “Net Position”, formerly known as net assets.  Assets and liabilities are 
presented in order of liquidity and are classified as “Current” (convertible into cash within one year), and 
“Non-current”.   
 
The focus of the Statement of Net Position (the “Unrestricted Net Position”) is designed to represent the 
net available liquid (non-capital) assets and deferred outflows of resources, net of liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources, for the entire Authority.  Net Position (formerly net assets) is reported in 
three broad categories: 
 
Net Investment in Capital Assets:  This component of Net Position consists of all Capital Assets, 
reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 
 
Restricted Net Position:  This component of Net Position consists of restricted assets, when constraints 
are placed on the asset by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, laws, regulations, 
etc. 
 
Unrestricted Net Position:  Consists of Net Position that does not meet the definition of “Net Investment 
in Capital Assets”, or “Restricted Net Position.” 

 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
 
The Authority-wide financial statements also include a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 
in Net Position (similar to an Income Statement).  This Statement includes operating revenues such as 
rental income and operating grants; operating expenses such as administrative, utilities, maintenance, 
and depreciation; and non-operating revenue and expenses such as capital grant revenue, investment 
income and interest expense. 
 
The focus of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position is the “Change in Net 
Position”, which is similar to Net Income or Loss. 
 
Statement of Cash Flows 
 
Finally, a Statement of Cash Flows is included, which discloses net cash provided by, or used for 
operating activities, non-capital financing activities, investing activities and from capital and related 
financing activities. 
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THE AUTHORITY’S MAIN PROGRAMS 
 

Significant Programs – The focus of the Authority’s Financial Statements should be on the significant 
programs of the Authority.  The following are considered significant programs of the Authority. 
 
Conventional Public Housing – Under the Conventional Public Housing Program, the Authority rents 
units that it owns to low-income households.  The Conventional Public Housing Program is operated 
under an Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) with HUD, and HUD provides Operating Subsidy and 
Capital Grant funding to enable the PHA to offer housing at a rent that is based upon 30% of household 
income.  The Conventional Public Housing Program also includes the Capital Fund Program, which is 
the primary funding source for physical and management improvements to the Authority’s properties. 
 
Other – In addition to the significant programs above, the Authority also maintains the following 
reporting units: 

 

• Central Office Cost Center 

• Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services Program 

• Choice Neighborhood Planning Grant Program 
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TABLE 1 

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
 

The following table reflects the Condensed Statement of Net Position compared to the prior year. 
 

2020 2019 Variance

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources:

Current Assets and Restricted Assets 6,806,644$    6,300,825$     505,819$         

Capital Assets 66,079,767    66,984,586     (904,819)          

Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,127,137      1,322,553       (195,416)          

Total Assets and Deferred

  Outflows of Resources 74,013,548$  74,607,964$   (594,416)$        

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources:

Current Liabilities 5,038,684$    4,661,450$     377,234$         

Non-Current Liabilities 38,930,813    41,576,717     (2,645,904)       

Deferred Inflows of Resources 13,186,146    13,354,838     (168,692)          

Total Liabilities and Deferred

  Inflows of Resources 57,155,643$  59,593,005$   (2,437,362)$     

Net Position:

Net Investment in Capital Assets 44,009,574$  42,805,980$   1,203,594$      

Restricted Net Position 60,445           204,471          (144,026)          

Unrestricted Net Position (27,212,114)  (27,995,492)    783,378           

Total Net Position 16,857,905$  15,014,959$   1,842,946$      

 
 

Major Factors Affecting the Condensed Statement of Net Position 
 

During 2020 there was a $.5 million increase of current and restricted assets due primarily to an 
increase of grant receivables due from HUD.  Capital assets decreased due to depreciation exceeding 
capital expenditures on improvements to the Public Housing properties.  For more detail see ‘Capital 
Assets’ in Table 4 (below).  Deferred outflows of resources decreased due primarily to changes of 
assumptions applied in the July 1, 2019 Report of the Actuary used to determine the Authority’s net 
pension liability. 
 
Current liabilities increased due mainly to increases of accounts payable due to vendors and 
contractors, accrued utility liabilities and accrued payment-in-lieu-of taxes liabilities.  Non-current 
liabilities decreased due primarily to capital debt retirements and a reduction of the pension liability as 
of year-end.  Deferred inflows of resources decreased due primarily to differences between projected 
and actual earnings on pension plan investments, and changes in the Authority’s proportion of 
participation in the pension plan as of the June 30, 2020 measurement date. 
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Table 2 presents details on the change in Unrestricted Net Position 

TABLE 2 

CHANGE OF UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION 

 

 

Unrestricted Net Position, January 1, 2020 (27,995,492)$     

Results of Operations 150,803             

Capital Asset Expenditures from Operations (360,029)            
 

Principal and Interest Expended on  

  Capital Debt from Operations (2,112,344)         

Interest Income 197                    

Depreciation Expense 3,104,751          

Unrestricted Net Position, December 31, 2020 (27,212,114)$     

 
While the results of operations are a significant measure of the Authority’s activities, the analysis of the 
changes in Unrestricted Net Position provides a clearer change in financial well-being. 
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TABLE 3 
 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
 
The following Schedule compares the revenues and expenses for the current and previous years. 
 

2020 2019 Variance

Revenues:

Tenant Rental Revenue 5,710,065$      5,834,471$    (124,406)$        

Operating Grants 13,177,890      12,320,414    857,476           

Capital Contributions 2,440,877        2,245,350      195,527           

Interest Income 197                  490                (293)                 

Other Revenue 1,167,741        1,019,667      148,074           

Total Revenues 22,496,770$    21,420,392$  1,076,378$      

Expenses:

Administrative Expenses 3,373,797$      3,521,797$    (148,000)$        

Tenant Services 620,240           137,745         482,495           

Utilities 2,885,468        2,793,017      92,451             

Maintenance and Operations 5,622,984        5,186,694      436,290           

Protective Services 1,258,379        1,295,075      (36,696)            

General Expense 2,397,759        1,923,224      474,535           

RAD Conversion Costs 641,515           811,773         (170,258)          

Interest Expense 748,931           819,709         (70,778)            

Loss on the Disposition of Capital Assets -                       1,025,854      (1,025,854)       

Depreciation 3,104,751        3,027,268      77,483             

Total Expenses 20,653,824$    20,542,156$  111,668$         

Excess of Revenues

Over Expenses 1,842,946$      878,236$       964,710$         
 

 
Major Factors Affecting the Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
 
Overall, total revenues increased $1.1 million during 2020.  Operating grants increased due to 
operating subsidies recognized under the Public Housing CARES Act Funding Program.  Capital 
contributions increased moderately due to increased modernization activity on the Authority’s Public 
Housing properties. 
 
Tenant services expenses increased due mainly to COVID-19 related costs incurred.  Maintenance 
expenses increased due to increases of externally contracted costs, and personnel and related costs 
incurred.  General expenses increased due primarily to increased employee leave accrual costs and 
tenant bad debt expenses incurred.  RAD Conversion Costs incurred during 2019 and 2020 consisted 
of preliminary costs of the Authority’s participation in the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development’s Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Program in which the Authority converted its 
Page Homes dwelling property into a Section 8-assisted property known as Turner Pointe Apartments.  
The 2019 loss on the disposition of capital assets was a result of the demolition of the Page Homes 
apartment complex. 
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets 
 
As of year-end, the Authority had $66.1 million invested in a variety of capital assets as reflected in the 
following schedule, which represents a net decrease of $.9 million from the end of last year. 
 

TABLE 4 
 

CAPITAL ASSETS AT YEAR-END 
(NET OF DEPRECIATION) 

 
2020 2019 Variance % Change

Land 1,993,866$     1,993,866$    -$                  0%

Buildings and Improvements 160,311,431   159,578,883  732,548        0%

Furniture and Equipment 6,203,935       6,183,435      20,500          0%

Construction in Process 4,255,599       2,808,715      1,446,884     52%

Accumulated Depreciation (106,685,064)  (103,580,313) (3,104,751)    3%

Net Capital Assets 66,079,767$   66,984,586$  (904,819)$     -1%

 
 
 

TABLE 5 
 

CHANGE IN CAPITAL ASSETS 

 
The following reconciliation summarizes the change in Capital Assets. 
 

 

Beginning Balance, January 1, 2020 66,984,586$  

Additions:

     Capital Fund Program - Improvements 1,695,877      

     Other Construction in Process Additions 483,555         

     Equipment Purchases 20,500           

Depreciation Expense (3,104,751)     

Ending Balance, December 31, 2020 66,079,767$  
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DEBT OUTSTANDING 

 
As of year-end, the Authority had $22.1 million in capital debt outstanding.   
 
 

TABLE 6 
 

OUTSTANDING DEBT, AT YEAR-END 

 

  

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019

Capital Fund Revenue Bonds 4,295,000$    5,040,000$    

Energy Performance

  Contract - Capital Debt 17,775,193    19,138,606    

Total 22,070,193$  24,178,606$  

 
 

ECONOMIC FACTORS 
 
Significant economic factors affecting the Authority are as follows: 
 

• Federal funding provided by Congress to the Department of Housing and Urban Development 

• Local labor supply and demand, which can affect salary and wage rates 

• Local inflationary, recessionary and employment trends, which can affect resident incomes and 
therefore the amount of rental income 

• Inflationary pressure on utility rates, supplies and other costs 
 

 
 

FINANCIAL CONTACT 
 
The individual to be contacted regarding this report is the Authority’s Executive Director.  Specific 
requests may be submitted to The Housing Authority of the City of Trenton, 875 New Willow Street, 
Trenton, New Jersey 08638. 
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THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TRENTON
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2020

ASSETS AND DEFERRED
    OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Enterprise
Fund

Current Assets
  Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,365,518$       
  Accounts Receivable, Net 836,387            
  Prepaid Costs 259,527            
  Inventory 284,767            
     Total Current Assets 6,746,199         

Restricted Assets
  Cash and Cash Equivalents 60,445              
      Total Restricted Assets 60,445              

Capital Assets
  Land 1,993,866         
  Buildings and Improvements 160,311,431     
  Furniture and Equipment 6,203,935         
  Construction in Process 4,255,599         

172,764,831     
  (Less): Accumulated Depreciation (106,685,064)    
     Net Capital Assets 66,079,767       

    Total Assets 72,886,411       

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pension 948,203            
Deferred Outflows of Resources - OPEB 178,934            
    Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,127,137         

    Total Assets and Deferred
      Outflows of Resources 74,013,548$     

See the accompanying notes to financial statements.
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THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TRENTON
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2020

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
    RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

Enterprise
Fund

Current Liabilities
  Accounts Payable 1,831,602$       
  Accrued Wages and Payroll Taxes 78,010              
  Accrued Compensated Absences 109,098            
  Accrued Interest Payable 75,821              
  Tenant Security Deposits 373,991            
  Unearned Revenue 387,240            
  Current Portion of Capital Debt 2,182,922         
     Total Current Liabilities 5,038,684         

Long Term Liabilities
  Long Term Capital Debt 19,887,271       
  Accrued Compensated Absences 253,099            
  Accrued Pension Liability 7,040,852         
  Accrued OPEB Liability 11,749,591       
     Total Long Term Liabilities 38,930,813       

     Total Liabilities 43,969,497       

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pension 3,322,726         
Deferred Inflows of Resources - OPEB 9,863,420         
    Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 13,186,146       

    Total Liabilities and Deferred
      Inflows of Resources 57,155,643       

Net Position
  Net Investment in Capital Assets 44,009,574       
  Restricted Net Position 60,445              
  Unrestricted Net Position (27,212,114)      
     Total Net Position 16,857,905       
 
    Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
      Resources and Net Position 74,013,548$     

See the accompanying notes to financial statements.
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THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TRENTON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN  NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Enterprise
Fund

Operating Revenues
  Dwelling Rent 5,710,065$         
  Operating Grants 13,177,890         
  Other Revenue 1,167,741           
     Total Operating Revenues 20,055,696         

Operating Expenses
  Administrative 3,373,797           
  Tenant Services 620,240              
  Utilities 2,885,468           
  Maintenance and Operations 5,622,984           
  Protective Services 1,258,379           
  General Expense 2,397,759           
  RAD Conversion Costs 641,515              
  Depreciation 3,104,751           
     Total Operating Expenses 19,904,893         

     Operating Income (Loss) 150,803              

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
  Interest Income 197                     
  Interest Expense (748,931)             
     Total Non-Operating Rev/(Exp) (748,734)             

Increase (decrease) before 
   Capital Contributions (597,931)             

Capital Contributions 2,440,877           

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 1,842,946           

Net Position, Beginning 15,014,959         
Net Position, Ending 16,857,905$       

See the accompanying notes to financial statements.
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THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TRENTON
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Enterprise
Fund

Cash flows from operating activities:
  Cash Received from Dwelling Rent 5,013,983$      
  Cash Received from Operating Grants 12,585,515      
  Cash Received from Other Sources 1,286,343        
  Cash Payments for Salaries and Benefits (7,978,487)       
  Cash Payments to Vendors and Landlords (8,460,603)       
    Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 2,446,751        

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
  Capital Grants Received 1,858,894        
  Capital Outlay (1,686,997)       
  Principal and Interest Paid on Capital Debt (2,872,751)       
    Net cash provided (used) by capital & related
      financing activities (2,700,854)       

Cash flows from investing activities:
  Interest Received on Cash and Cash Equivalents 197                  
    Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 197                  

Net Decrease in Cash and Restricted Cash (253,906)         

    Total Cash and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year 5,679,869        

    Total Cash and Restricted Cash, End of Year 5,425,963$      

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
 provided (used) by operating activities:

  Operating Income (Loss) 150,803$         
  Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
   provided (used) by operating activities:
    Depreciation 3,104,751        
    Bad Debt Expense (Tenants) 585,484           
    Change in Accounts Receivable (Tenants) (662,645)         
    Change in Accounts Receivable (Grants) 18,221             
    Change in Other Accounts Receivable 103,427           
    Change in Prepaid Costs and Inventory (143,686)         
    Change in Accounts Payable (Operating) 525,636           
    Change in Accrued and Deferred Personnel Expenses (606,382)         
    Change in Unearned Revenue (Grants) (610,596)         
    Change in Unearned Revenue (Tenants) (33,437)           
    Change in Security Deposits Held 15,175             
  Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 2,446,751$      

See the accompanying notes to financial statements.
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THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 
TRENTON, NEW JERSEY 

 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 
 
 
NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The financial statements of the Housing Authority have been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units.  The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting 
and financial reporting principles.  The Authority is a Special Purpose Government engaged only in 
business-type activities and therefore, presents only the financial statements required for the enterprise 
fund, in accordance with GASB Statement 34 paragraph 138 and GASB Statement 63.  
 
The Authority has multiple programs which are accounted for in one enterprise fund, which is presented as 
the “Enterprise Fund” in the basic financial statements as follows: 
 
 Enterprise Fund – In accordance with the Enterprise Fund Method, activity is recorded using the 

accrual basis of accounting and the measurement focus is on the flow of economic resources.  
Under the accrual basis of accounting revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when are incurred.  This required the Housing Authority to account for operations in a 
manner similar to private business or where the Board has decided that the determination of 
revenues earned, costs incurred, and/or net income is necessary for management accountability. 

 
 Governmental Accounting Standards – The Housing Authority has applied all applicable 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board pronouncements as well as applicable 
pronouncements issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board. 

 
Cash 
 
The Housing Authority considers cash on hand and cash in checking to be cash equivalents.  Cash on 
hand is not included in calculation of collateral required. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
Tenant accounts receivable total $809,822 and are reported net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of 
$615,740, at a net realizable value of $194,082.  Other receivables consisted of grant receivables due from 
HUD of $642,305. 
 
Prepaid Items and Inventory 
 
Prepaid items and inventory consist of payments made to vendors for services and materials that will 
benefit future periods. 
 
Unearned Revenue 
 
The Authority recognizes revenues as earned.  Funds received before the Authority is eligible to apply 
them are recorded as a liability under unearned revenue and consisted of $13,876 of prepaid tenant rents 
and $373,364 of unexpended grant proceeds. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 
 
NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES- CONTINUED 
 
Revenue Accounting Policies 
 
Dwelling rent income, HUD Grants received for operations, other operating fund grants and operating 
miscellaneous income are shown as operating income.  HUD grants received for capital assets and all 
other revenue is shown as non-operating revenue.  These financial statements do not contain material 
inter-program revenues and expenses for internal activity.  The policy is to eliminate any material inter-
program revenues and expenses for these financial statements. 
 
Property and Equipment 
 
Property and equipment are recorded at cost.  Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method 
over the estimated useful lives of the assets.  The costs of maintenance and repairs are expensed, while 
significant renewals and betterments are capitalized.  Small dollar value minor equipment items are 
expensed. Depreciation on assets has been expensed in the statement of income and expenses.  
Estimated useful lives are as follows: 
 
 Buildings   30 years 
 Improvements  10 - 15 years 
 Furniture and equipment 5 - 10 years 
 
Authority management has assessed the carrying values of capital asset balances as of December 31, 
2020, and as of March 7, 2022.  No significant capital asset value impairments exist as of the noted dates. 
 
PILOT Agreement 
 
The Authority has entered into a Payment-in-Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) Agreement with the City of Trenton, 
whereby the Partnership agrees to pay a negotiated sum in lieu of local real property taxes.  The 
Authority incurred PILOT expense of $285,949 during 2020 and owed the City $570,248 as of 
December 31, 2020.  This amount is reported in the accounts payable accrual on the Authority’s 
Statement of Net Position. 
 
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
 
A Deferred Outflow of Resources is a consumption of assets by the Authority that is applicable to a future 
reporting period.  Conversely, a Deferred Inflow of Resources is an acquisition of assets by the Authority 
that is applicable to a future reporting period. 
 
Indirect Costs Recovery 
 
Direct costs are charged to the Authority’s applicable programs.  The Authority charges indirect costs to its 
Central Office Cost Center and charges the programs management fees based on fee rates provided by 
the Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 
 
NOTE B - REPORTING ENTITY DEFINITION 
 
The Housing Authority is a separate non-profit corporation with a Board of Directors.  The applicable 
jurisdictions appoint the Board of Directors.  However, the Housing Authority has complete legislative and 
administrative authority, and it recruits and employs personnel.  The Authority adopts a budget that is 
approved by the Board of Directors and submitted to the New Jersey Division of Local Government 
Services (DLGS).  The Authority’s budget is not funded by DLGS, but rather the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) based upon performance funding and program and capital 
grants.  Subsidies for operations are received primarily from HUD.  The Authority has substantial legal 
authority to control its affairs without local government approval; therefore, all operations of the Authority 
are a separate reporting entity as reflected in this report. 
 
In determining how to define the reporting entity, management has considered all potential component 
units.  The decision to include a component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria 
set forth in Section 2100 and 2600 of the Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial 
Reporting Standards, Statement No. 14 (amended), of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board: 
The Financial Reporting Entity, Statement No. 39: Determining Whether Certain Organizations are 
Component Units, and Statement No. 61: The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus.  These criteria include 
manifestation of oversight responsibility including financial accountability, appointment of a voting majority, 
imposition of will, financial benefit to or burden on a primary organization, financial accountability as a 
result of fiscal dependency, potential for dual inclusion, and organizations included in the reporting entity 
although the primary organization is not financially accountable.  Based upon the application of these 
criteria, the reporting entity includes the following blended component units: 
 
Trenton City Housing and Redevelopment Corporation (TCHRC) is a related not-for-profit New Jersey 
corporation, which was created to serve as an instrumentality of the Authority in facilitating low-moderate 
income housing opportunities in the Trenton community.  TCHRC’s Board of Directors is substantively the 
same as the Authority’s board and the Authority maintains operational responsibility of TCHRC.  TCHRC’s 
year end is December 31.  However, TCHRC did not have any financial activity during 2020 or financial 
balances as of December 31, 2020. 
  
Page Homes Redevelopment, LLC (PHR, LLC) is a related limited liability company.  TCHRC is the sole 
member of PHR, LLC.  PHR, LLC was created to serve as an instrumentality of the Authority, to facilitate 
the Page Homes Redevelopment Project through the Authority’s participation in HUD’s Rental Assistance 
Demonstration (RAD) Program.  PHR, LLC’s year end is December 31.  However, PHR, LLC did not have 
any financial activity during 2020 or financial balances as of December 31, 2020. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 
 
NOTE C - CASH DEPOSITS 
 

Custodial Credit Risk – The Authority’s policy is to limit credit risk by adherence to the list of HUD-

permitted investments, which are backed by the full faith and credit of or a guarantee of principal and 
interest by the U.S. Government.   

 
Interest Rate Risk – The Authority’s formal investment policy does not limit investment maturities as a 
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from interest rate volatility.  
 
The U.S. Department of HUD requires housing authorities to invest excess funds in obligations of the 
U.S., certificates of deposit or any other federally-insured investments. 
 
The Housing Authority’s cash and cash equivalents consisted of funds held in interest and non-interest-
bearing checking accounts totaling a reconciled balance of $5,425,463.  The remaining $500 is held in 
the form of petty cash or a change fund.  Deposits balances with financial institutions are secured as 
follows: 

  

Bank

Deposits

Insured by FDIC 636,139$        

Collateralized with specific securities 

  pledged to the Authority and held by

  a third party financial institution 4,819,520       

5,455,659$     
 

All investments are carried at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates market.  The Authority had 
no realized gains or losses on the sale of investments.  The calculation of realized gains or losses is 
independent of a calculation of the net change in the fair value of investments. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 
 
NOTE D - PENSION PLAN 
 
Public Employees’ Retirement System 
 

Plan Description – The Authority is a participating employer in the State of New Jersey Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan 
administered by the State of New Jersey, Division of Pension and Benefits.  Benefits under PERS 
include retirement, death and disability benefits, and have been established and may be amended by 
action of the State legislature.  For additional information about PERS, please refer to the ‘Schedule of 
Employer Allocations and Schedule of Pension Amounts by Employer’ and the ‘Sixty-Second Annual 
Report of the Actuary’ which can be found at www.state.nj.us/treasury/financial-reports.shtml. 
 

Benefits Provided – PERS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits.  All 
benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of service 
or under the disability provisions of PERS.  
 
The following represents the membership tiers for PERS: 
 

Tier Definition 

1 Members who enroll prior to July 1, 2007 
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to Nov. 2, 2008 
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after Nov. 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010 
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011 
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011 
  

Service retirement benefits of 1/55th of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to 
tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62.  Service 
retirement benefits of 1/60th of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 
members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65.  Early retirement benefits 
are available to tiers 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, tiers 2 and 4 before age  62 with 25 or 
more years of service credit and tier 5 with 30 or more years of service credit before age 65.  Benefits 
are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires prior to the age at which a 
member can receive full early retirement benefits in accordance with their respective tier.  Tier 1 
members can receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of 
service.  Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and 
have not reached the service retirement age for the respective tier. 
 

Contributions – The actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019 reflects Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, which 
increased the member (employee) contribution rate from 5.5% to 6.5% of compensation effective 
October 2011.  Further, in July 2012, the member contribution rate increased by 1/7th of 1% each July 
through July of 2018 when a 7.50%-member contribution rate was reached.  Contribution rates for 
employers are determined by an actuarial valuation.  During the year ended December 31, 2020, 
employees were required to contribute 7.50% of their annual salary and the Authority contributed an 
additional 12.99% of the employees’ compensation. 
 
During the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Authority’s contributions to PERS 
required and made were $408,294, $418,314, and $377,906, respectively. 
 

Refund of Contributions – Eligible upon service termination prior to age 60 (age 62 for Tier 3 and Tier 4 
members and age 65 for Tier 5 members) and prior to 10 years of service. Benefit equals refund of 
accumulated deductions plus, if the member has completed three years of service, interest allowed 
thereon.  
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – CONTINUED 
 
NOTE D – PENSION PLAN - CONTINUED 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pension 
 

As of December 31, 2020, the Authority reported a liability of $7,040,852 for its proportionate share of 
the net pension liability.  The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020.  The total pension 
liability used to calculate the pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 
2019 rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2020. The Authority’s proportion of the net 
pension liability was based on the Authority’s share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
contributions of all employers participating in PERS for the year ended June 30, 2020.  As of June 30, 
2020, the Authority’s proportion was .0431758480%, which was a reduction of .0012007562% from its 
proportion measured as of June 30, 2019. 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Authority recognized a pension benefit of $87,405.  As of 
December 31, 2020, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to the pension plan from the following sources: 

 Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources 

Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between projected and actual experience 128,202$       24,899$         

Changes of assumptions 228,413         2,948,071      

Net difference between projected and actual

  earnings on plan investments 240,662         -                 

Changes in proportion and differences between 

  employer contributions and proportionate share 

  of contributions 350,926         349,756         

Authority's contributions made subsequent to the

  measurement date of June 30, 2020 -                 -                 

Total   948,203$       3,322,726$    

 
The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
the pension plan will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

     

Year Ended June 30:

2020 (218,393)$    

2021 (708,462)

2022 (632,616)

2023 (297,046)

2024 (30,500)

  Total (1,887,017)$ 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – CONTINUED 
 
NOTE D – PENSION PLAN - CONTINUED  
  
Actuarial Assumptions – The collective total pension liability as of the June 30, 2020 measurement date 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020.  
This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions: 
 

Inflation                          2.75% 
Salary increases  

      (through 2026)             2.00 – 6.00% based on years of service 
         Thereafter   3.00 – 7.00% based on years of service 

Investment rate of return 7.00% 
 
Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Employee 
Mortality Table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for females, and with future 
improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.  Post-retirement mortality rates were 
based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Employee Mortality Table with an 91.4% 
adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base 
year of 2010 on a generational basis.  Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2020. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2018.  It is likely that future experience will not 
exactly conform to these assumptions.  To the extent that actual experience deviates from these 
assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated.  The more experience 
deviates, the larger the impact on future financial statements.  Best estimates of arithmetic rates of return 
for each major asset class included in PERS’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2020 are summarized 
in the following table: 

   

Long-Term

Target Expected Rate

Asset Class Allocation of Return

Risk Migration Strategies 3.00% 3.40%

Cash Equivalents 4.00% 50.00%

U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 1.94%

Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 2.67%

High Yield 2.00% 5.95%

Private Credit 8.00% 7.59%

Real Assets 3.00% 9.73%

Real Estate 8.00% 9.56%

U.S. Equity 27.00% 7.71%

Non-U.S. Developed Markets Equity 13.50% 8.57%

Emerging Markets Equity 5.50% 10.23%

Private Equity 13.00% 11.42%

   Total 100.00%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – CONTINUED 
 
NOTE D – PENSION PLAN – CONTINUED 
 
Discount rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 
2020.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions 
from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from 
employers will be based on 100% of actuarially determined contributions for the local employers.  
Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to make all projected 
future benefit payments of current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
plan investments was applied to all projected benefit payments in determining the total pension liability. 
 

Sensitivity of the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount 
rate - The following table presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
calculated using the discount rate of 7.00 percent, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of 
the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point 
lower (6.00%) or 1 percentage point higher (8.00%) than the current rate: 
 

1% Decrease 

(6.00%)

Current 

Discount Rate 

(7.00%)

1% Increase 

(8.00%)

Authority's Net Pension Liability 8,932,953 7,040,852 5,537,696
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 
 
NOTE E – RETIRED EMPLOYEES HEALTH BENEFIT PLAN 
 
Plan Description – The Authority is a participating employer in the State of New Jersey Local Government 
Retired Employees Health Benefit Plan (the Plan), a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit other 
post-employment benefit (OPEB) plan, which is administered as a trust.  It   covers employees of local 
government employers that have adopted a resolution to participate in the Plan.  All of the Authority’s 
eligible retirees receive health insurance benefits through the Plan.  Obligations and benefits of the Plan 
are established and may be amended by State statute.  Under the Plan; benefits risks and liabilities are 
pooled (shared) and Plan assets received from participating employers are legally used to pay benefits 
to participating retirees. All risks, rewards, and costs, including benefit costs, are shared and are not 
attributed individually to the various employers. Required contributions are actuarially determined.  A 
single actuarial valuation covers all Plan members, and the same contribution rate applies for each 
employer. Plan financial statements and required supplementary information are reported with the State’s 

PERS financial statements and can be found at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/financial-

reports.shtml.  The Plan’s net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources 

and fiduciary net position are accounted for and reported using the accrual basis under U.S. Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles. 
 
Benefits Provided – The Plan provides medical and prescription drugs to retirees and their covered 
dependents of the participating employers. Under the provisions of Chapter 48, P.L. 1999, the employer 
may assume the cost of post-retirement medical coverage for employees and their dependents who: 1) 
retired on a disability pension; or 2) retired with 25 or more years of service credit in a State or locally 
administered retirement system and a period of service of up to 25 years with the employer at the time 
of retirement as established by the employer; or 3) retired and reached the age of 65 with 25 or more 
years of service credit In a State or locally administered retirement system and a period of service of up 
to 25 years with the employer at the time of retirement as established by the employer; or 4) retired and 
reached age 62 with at least 15 years of service with the employer.  Further, the law provides that the 
employer-paid obligations for retiree coverage may be determined by means of a Collective Negotiations 
Agreement. 
 
Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L, 2011, future retirees eligible for post-retirement medical coverage who have 
less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay a percentage of the cost 
of their health care coverage in retirement provided they retire with 25 or more years of pension service 
credit. The percentage of the premium for which the retiree will be responsible will be determined based 
on the retiree's annual retirement benefit and level of coverage. 
 
Contributions – The funding policy for the Plan is pay-as-you-go; therefore, there is no pre-funding of the 
liability.  However, due to premium rates being set prior to each calendar year, there is a minimal amount 
of net position available to cover benefits in future years.  Contributions to pay for the health benefit 
premiums of participating employees in the Plan are collected from participating local employers and 
retired members.  Local employers and retired members remit contributions on a monthly basis. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – CONTINUED 
 
NOTE E – RETIRED EMPLOYEES HEALTH BENEFIT PLAN - CONTINUED 
 
Investment of Plan Assets – The OPEB Plan only invests in the State of New Jersey Cash Management 
Fund.  The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB investments was based off the best-estimate 
ranges of future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment expense and 
inflation) for cash equivalents, which is 2.00%. 
 
Components of Net OPEB Liability – GASB Statement No. 75 (GASBS No. 75) requires participating 
employers in the Plan to recognize their proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability, collective 
deferred outflows of resources, collective deferred inflows of resources, and collective OPEB benefit.  
The Plan's net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and OPEB 
benefit are allocated to the Authority based on the ratio of the Plan members of the Authority to the total 
members of the Plan during the measurement period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. 
 
The components of the Authority’s net OPEB liability of the Plan as of June 30, 2019 are as follows: 
 

   

Total OPEB Liability 11,986,536$  

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 236,945         

Total   11,749,591$  

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as 

a Percentage of the Total 

OPEB Liability 1.98%

 Components of Net OPEB Liability 

 
The total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2019 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 
2018, which was rolled forward to the June 30, 2019 measurement date using standardized update 
procedures based on the assumptions applied to the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation, identified below. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – CONTINUED 
 
NOTE E – RETIRED EMPLOYEES HEALTH BENEFIT PLAN - CONTINUED 
 
Actuarial Assumptions – This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions: 
 

Inflation                          2.50% 
Salary increases  

      (through 2026)             2.00 – 6.00% based on age 
         Thereafter   3.00 – 7.00% based on age   
 
The actuarial assumptions with respect to salary increases were 1.65% - 8.98% through 2026 and 2.65% 
- 9.98% thereafter as of the June 30, 2018 measurement date.  The actuarial assumption with respect to 
inflation has not changed since the June 30, 2018 measurement date. 
 
Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Headcount-Weighted Mortality Table with fully 
generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using the MP-2019 Scale. 

 
Certain actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of the State 
of New Jersey Public Employees’ Retirement System’s (PERS) experience studies, which were prepared 
for the periods July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2018 and July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2018, respectively. 

 
100% of active members are considered to participate in the Plan upon retirement. 

 
Healthcare Trend Assumptions - For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend is initially 5.7% and 
decreases to a 4.5% long-term trend rate after eight years.   For post-65 medical benefits, the actual fully-
insured Medicare Advantage trend rates for fiscal year 2020 are reflected.  The assumed post-65 medical 
trend is 4.5% for all future years.  For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 7.5% and 
decreases to a 4.5% long-term trend rate after eight years. 
 
Sensitivity of the Authority’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare 
trend rate - The following table presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 
calculated using the healthcare trend rate as disclosed above, as well as what the Authority’s 
proportionate share of the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare trend rate 
that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate: 
 

1% Decrease
Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rate
1% Increase

Authority's Net OPEB Liability (Asset) 9,915,207 11,749,591 14,089,657
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – CONTINUED 
 
NOTE E – RETIRED EMPLOYEES HEALTH BENEFIT PLAN - CONTINUED 

 
Discount rate – The discount rate used to measure the net OPEB liability was 3.50% as of June 30, 2019.  
This represents the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the State.  The source is the Bond Buyer 
Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with 
an average rating of AA/Aa or higher.  As the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal bond 
rate, it is not considered in the calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount rate is set at the 
municipal bond rate.  The discount rate decreased .37% from the discount rate as of the June 30, 2018 
measurement date of 3.87%. 
 
Sensitivity of the Authority’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate 
- The following table presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 3.50%, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the net OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (2.50%) or 1 
percentage point higher (4.50%) than the current rate: 
 

1% Decrease 

(2.50%)

Current 

Discount Rate 

(3.50%)

1% Increase 

(4.50%)

Authority's Net OPEB Liability (Asset) 13,585,516 11,749,591 10,257,659
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – CONTINUED 
 
NOTE E – RETIRED EMPLOYEES HEALTH BENEFIT PLAN - CONTINUED 
 
OPEB Benefit, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 

The Authority’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on the ratio of the Authority’s Plan 
members relative to the total number of members to the Plan during the measurement period of July 1, 
2018 through June 30, 2019.  At June 30, 2019, the Authority’s proportion was .086738%, which was a 
decrease of .00789% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018 of .094628%. 
 
The Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the 
Plan from the following sources: 

 Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources 

Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between projected and actual experience -$                3,436,038$     

Changes of assumptions -                  4,163,794       

Net difference between projected and actual

  earnings on plan investments 9,678              -                  

Changes in proportion and differences between 

  employer contributions and proportionate share 

  of contributions -                  2,263,588       

Authority's contributions made from July 1, 2019

  through December 31, 2019 169,256          -                  

Total   178,934$        9,863,420$     

 
The amounts below do not include deferred outflows of resources related to the Authority’s contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date.  These amounts will be recognized as a reduction to the collective 
net OPEB liability.  Additionally, deferred inflows of resources related to changes in proportion are 
excluded from the amounts below.  These amounts will be recognized (amortized) by each employer 
over the average remaining service lives of all Plan members, which is 8.05 years.  The remaining 
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the Plan 
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
 

     

Year Ended June 30:

2021 (2,472,382)$    

2022 (1,236,950)

2023 (1,238,176)

2024 (1,239,297)

Thereafter (1,403,349)

  Total (7,590,154)$    
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – CONTINUED 
 
NOTE F – COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 
The Authority’s policy allows employees to accumulate and carry-over up to one year of earned vacation.  
This policy also allows for full payment of earned leave upon termination.   
 
The sick leave policy, which is in accordance with state laws, allows employees to accumulate unused sick 
leave.  Upon normal retirement under the Public Employees Retirement System, employees shall be 
entitled to receive a lump sum payment as supplemental compensation for each full day of earned and 
unused accumulated sick leave of one-half (1/2) of the eligible employee’s daily rate of pay.  No lump sum 
payment shall exceed $15,000.  Leave accrued but not yet paid as of December 31, 2020, is reported as a 
liability allocated between current and noncurrent. 
 
 
NOTE G – LONG TERM LIABILITIES 
 
The Housing Authority pledged a portion of its annual Capital Fund Grant from HUD to secure the 
Authority’s allocable portion of bonds issued jointly by the Authority and other participating New Jersey 
housing authorities.  The Authority’s allocable share of the net proceeds, $12,453,954 was used to 
acquire, construct, equip, renovate and improve public housing developments owned and operated by the 
Authority for rental to, and occupancy by qualified tenants under the applicable HUD rules and regulations.  
The bonds are designated “Capital Fund Program Revenue Bonds, 2004 Series A.”  The bonds bear 
interest at a rate not to exceed 4.7%, are paid semi-annually and mature in 2025.  Interest expense 
incurred during the year was $222,596.  The principal balance as of December 31, 2020, was 
$4,295,000.  The bonds are payable as follows: 

  

Principal

Principal Interest Balance Due

2021 780,000$       192,818$     3,515,000$    

2022 815,000         155,805       2,700,000      

2023 860,000         116,913       1,840,000      

2024 900,000         76,022         940,000         

2025 940,000         33,135         -                 

4,295,000$    574,693$     -$               
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – CONTINUED 
 
NOTE G – LONG TERM LIABILITIES - CONTINUED 
 
In March of 2009, the Authority obtained financing, under a lease purchase agreement, from TD Bank 
to fund the installation & maintenance of energy efficient equipment and fixtures in the Authority’s public 
housing units.  In July of 2015, the Authority refinanced the principal balance of $18,990,959 with a 
$23,590,959 lease purchase agreement with TD Bank.  The agreement bears interest at a rate of 
2.86%.  Monthly principal and interest payments are payable through 2029.  The agreement is secured 
by the equipment and fixtures.  Interest expense incurred during the year was $526,335.   The principal 
balance as of December 31, 2020, was $17,775,193.  Debt service requirements are as follows: 
 

  

Principal

Principal Interest Balance Due

2021 1,402,922$     490,075$     16,372,271$  

2022 1,510,706       448,546       14,861,565    

2023 1,623,963       403,863       13,237,602    

2024 1,742,934       355,866       11,494,668    

2025 1,867,869       304,389       9,626,799      

2026 - 2029 9,626,799       626,926       -                 

17,775,193$   2,629,665$  -$               

 
 
A summary of long-term liabilities is as follows as of December 31, 2020: 
 

January 1, December 31, Due Within

2020 Balance Increase Decrease 2020 Balance One Year

Bonds Payable 5,040,000$    -$                 745,000$     4,295,000$    780,000$     

EPC Lease Purchase

  Agreement 19,138,606    -                   1,363,413    17,775,193    1,402,922    

Compensated Absences 275,176         362,198       275,177       362,197         109,098       

Accrued Pension Liability 7,563,275      -                   522,423       7,040,852      -                  

Accrued OPEB Liability 11,749,591    -                   -                  11,749,591    -                  

Less: Current portion (2,189,931)     (2,292,020)      

Long Term Liabilities 41,576,717$  362,198$     2,906,013$  38,930,813$  2,292,020$  

 
NOTE H – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Amounts received or receivable from HUD are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies.  If 
expenses are disallowed as a result of these audits, the claims for reimbursement to the grantor agency 
would become a liability of the Authority.  In the opinion of management, any such adjustments would not 
be significant. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – CONTINUED 
 
NOTE I – RESTRICTED CASH AND RESTRICTED NET POSITION 
 
The Authority’s restricted cash consisted of the following as of the end of the year: 
 

  
Funds Restricted for Development 60,445$           

 
 
Funds restricted for development consist of sales proceeds from the disposition of Kearney Homes 
(Project NJ005004) during 2006.  The proceeds are to be used for redevelopment.  Due to the restriction 
of these assets, $60,445 is reported as restricted net position in the Statement of Net Position. 
 
 
NOTE J – HOPE VI PROJECT LOAN AGREEMENTS 
 
In April of 2010, the Authority entered into a 90-year land lease in which the Authority leased land, with a 
book value of $510,000, to Carl Miller Associates, LLC for a one-time rental payment of $10.  Through the 
end of 2015 the Authority loaned $13,489,173 to Carl Miller Associates, LLC to fund development costs of 
the Miller Homes Site Revitalization Project under three non-interest-bearing Loan Agreements in the 
amounts of $739,216, $11,989,957, and $760,000; dated in December of 2012.  The Loan Agreements do 
not bear interest and are secured with subordinate leasehold mortgages against the applicable property.  
Upon expiration of the 90-year land lease, ownership of any remaining structures and improvements will 
transfer to the Authority.  Due to uncertainties regarding collectability, the advances have been fully 
reserved.  Any assets received as reimbursement of these loans will be recognized as revenue upon 
receipt.  No funds were loaned, and no reimbursements were received during 2020. 
 
 
NOTE K – LONG-TERM CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS 
 
The Authority had the following outstanding contractual commitments of as of December 31, 2020: 
 

  

Type of Commitment:

Renovations/ Modernizations 230,709$         

Professional Services 355,985           

Maintenance and Operations 282,533           

  Total Outstanding Contractual Commitments 869,227$         

 
 
NOTE L – SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES 
 
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  
The financial statements include some amounts that are based on management’s best estimates and 
judgments.  The most significant estimates relate to depreciation and useful lives, and the net pension and 
OPEB liabilities and related expenses.  These estimates may be adjusted as more current information 
becomes available, and any adjustment could be significant. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – CONTINUED 
 
NOTE M – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
A summary of capital asset balances and activity as of, and for the year ended December 31, 2020, is as 
follows: 
 

January 1, 2020 Transfers & December 31, 2020

Balance Additions Deletions Balance

Land 1,993,866$         -$                -$                1,993,866$               

Construction in

   Process 2,808,715           2,179,432        (732,548)         4,255,599                 

Total Assets not

  being depreciated 4,802,581           2,179,432        (732,548)         6,249,465                 

Buildings and

   Improvements 159,578,883       -                  732,548           160,311,431             

 

Furniture and

   Equipment 6,183,435           20,500             -                  6,203,935                 

Total Capital

   Assets 170,564,899       2,199,932        -                  172,764,831             

Less Accumulated Depreciation

   Buildings and Improvements (97,431,338)       (3,078,127)      -                  (100,509,465)            

   Furniture and Equipment (6,148,975)         (26,624)           -                  (6,175,599)                

Net Book Value 66,984,586$       (904,819)$       -$                66,079,767$             

 
NOTE N – CONCENTRATION OF RISK 

 
The Housing Authority receives most of its funding from HUD.  These funds and grants are subject to 
modification by HUD depending on the availability of funding.   
 
 
NOTE O – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Housing Authority is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  The Housing 
Authority carries commercial insurance for all risks of loss, including workman’s compensation and 
employee health and accident insurance.  The Housing Authority has not had any significant reductions in 
insurance coverage, or any claims not reimbursed. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – CONTINUED 
 
NOTE P – RENTAL ASSISTANCE DEMONSTRATION (RAD) PROGRAM COSTS 
 
RAD conversion costs incurred during 2020 of $641,515 consisted of preliminary costs of the Authority’s 
participation in HUD’s Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Program in which the Authority converted 
its former Page Homes dwelling project into a Section 8-assisted property known as Turner Pointe 
Apartments. 
 
In connection with the RAD conversion, during 2019 the Authority entered into a 75-year land lease with 
Rossell Avenue Urban Renewal, LLC (the lessee) in order to make way for the development of Turner 
Pointe Apartments.  The lease payment of $1,453,238 is payable to the Authority no tater than 2049.  Due 
to uncertainties regarding collectability, the lease payment receivable has been fully reserved.  Any assets 
received under the lease will be recognized as revenue upon receipt. 
  
 
NOTE Q – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management evaluated subsequent events through March 7, 2022, 
the date the financial statements were available to be issued and determined that no significant 
subsequent events have occurred. 
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THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TRENTON
STATEMENT AND CERTIFICATION OF PROGRAM COSTS - CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

NJ39P005501-17

Funds Approved 2,497,715$          
Funds Expended 2,497,715            
  Excess of Funds Approved -$                     

Funds Advanced 2,497,715$          
Funds Expended 2,497,715            
  Excess of Funds Advanced -$                     

1.  The distribution of costs as shown on the Actual Modernization Cost Certificate submitted
      to HUD for approval is in agreement with the Housing Authority's records.

2.   All Modernization costs have been paid and all related liabilities have been discharged
      through payment.
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THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 
TRENTON, NEW JERSEY 

 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

 
 

EXPENDITURES

Public Housing Program

Assistance Listing Number 14.850a 9,260,295$       

Public Housing CARES Act Funding

Assistance Listing Number 14.PHC 1,425,255         

Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services Program

Assistance Listing Number 14.870 26,247              

Capital Fund Program

Assistance Listing Number 14.872 4,734,796         

Choice Neighborhood Planning Grant

Assistance Listing Number 14.892 172,174            

TOTAL HUD EXPENDITURES 15,618,767       

TOTAL FEDERAL EXPENDITURES 15,618,767$     

 
 
NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
The above Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal award activity of the Authority 
under programs of the federal government for the year ended December 31, 2020.  The information on this 
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards.  Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of operations of the Authority, it 
is not intended to and does not present the financial net position, changes in net position, or cash flows of 
the Authority. 

 
 
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  Such 
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein 
certain types of expenditures are not allowed or are limited as to reimbursement. 
 
 
NOTE 3 – INDIRECT COST RATE 
 
The Authority has elected not to use the 10% De Minimus Indirect Cost Rate allowed under the Uniform 
Guidance. 
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The Housing Authority of the City of Trenton  (NJ005)

TRENTON, NJ
Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary

Fiscal Year 
End:  12/31/2020

14.PHC Public 
Housing CARES 

Act Funding

14.870 Resident 
Opportunity and 

Supportive 
Services

14.892 Choice 
Neighborhood 
Planning Grant

Elimination
Total Enterprise 

Fund

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $             4,918,323 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                        60,445 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                      373,991 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                        73,204 

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $             5,425,963 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                      642,305 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                      748,616 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                    (615,740)

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                        61,206 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                836,387 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                      259,527 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                      299,755 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                      (14,988)

                           -                              -                              -                (1,344,000)                             -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $          (1,344,000)  $             6,806,644 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                   1,993,866 

Project Total COCC

 111  Cash - Unrestricted  $           4,701,906  $              216,417 

 112  Cash - Restricted - Modernization and Development                    60,445                            -   

 113  Cash - Other Restricted                           -                              -   

 114  Cash - Tenant Security Deposits                  373,991                            -   

 115  Cash - Restricted for Payment of Current Liabilities                    73,204                            -   

 100  Total Cash  $           5,209,546  $              216,417 

 

 121  Accounts Receivable - PHA Projects                           -                              -   

 122  Accounts Receivable - HUD Other Projects                  642,305                            -   

 124  Accounts Receivable - Other Government                           -                              -   

 125  Accounts Receivable - Miscellaneous                           -                              -   

 126  Accounts Receivable - Tenants                  748,616                            -   

 126.1  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -Tenants                 (615,740)                            -   

 126.2  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Other                           -                              -   

 127  Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Current                    61,206                            -   

 128  Fraud Recovery                           -                              -   

 128.1  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Fraud                           -                              -   

 129  Accrued Interest Receivable                           -                              -   

 120  Total Receivables, Net of Allowances for Doubtful Accounts  $              836,387  $                        -   

 

 131  Investments - Unrestricted                           -                              -   

 132  Investments - Restricted                           -                              -   

 135  Investments - Restricted for Payment of Current Liability                           -                              -   

 142  Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets                           -                    259,527 

 143  Inventories                  299,755                            -   

 143.1  Allowance for Obsolete Inventories                   (14,988)                            -   

 144  Inter Program Due From                  623,000                  721,000 

 145  Assets Held for Sale                           -                              -   

 150  Total Current Assets  $           6,953,700  $           1,196,944 

 

 161  Land               1,976,466                    17,400 
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The Housing Authority of the City of Trenton  (NJ005)

TRENTON, NJ
Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary

Fiscal Year 
End:  12/31/2020

14.PHC Public 
Housing CARES 

Act Funding

14.870 Resident 
Opportunity and 

Supportive 
Services

14.892 Choice 
Neighborhood 
Planning Grant

Elimination
Total Enterprise 

Fund
Project Total COCC

                           -                              -                              -                              -               160,311,431 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                   3,007,336 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                   3,196,599 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -             (106,685,064)

                           -                              -                              -                              -                   4,255,599 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $           66,079,767 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $           66,079,767 

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $             1,127,137 

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $          (1,344,000)  $           74,013,548 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                      425,778 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                        78,010 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                      109,098 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                        75,821 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                      570,248 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                      373,991 

 162  Buildings           159,924,419                  387,012 

 163  Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Dwellings               3,007,336                            -   

 164  Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Administration               1,026,325               2,170,274 

 165  Leasehold Improvements                           -                              -   

 166  Accumulated Depreciation          (104,262,438)              (2,422,626)

 167  Construction in Progress               4,255,599                            -   

 168  Infrastructure                           -                              -   

 160  Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation  $         65,927,707  $              152,060 

 

 171  Notes, Loans and Mortgages Receivable - Non-Current                           -                              -   

 172  Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Non Current - Past Due                           -                              -   

 173  Grants Receivable - Non Current                           -                              -   

 174  Other Assets                           -                              -   

 176  Investments in Joint Ventures                           -                              -   

 180  Total Non-Current Assets  $         65,927,707  $              152,060 

 

 200  Deferred Outflow of Resources  $              661,585  $              465,552 

 

 290  Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources  $         73,542,992  $           1,814,556 

 

 311  Bank Overdraft                           -                              -   

 312  Accounts Payable <= 90 Days                  288,261                  137,517 

 313  Accounts Payable >90 Days Past Due                           -                              -   

 321  Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable                    62,006                    16,004 

 322  Accrued Compensated Absences - Current Portion                    28,066                    81,032 

 324  Accrued Contingency Liability                           -                              -   

 325  Accrued Interest Payable                    75,821                            -   

 331  Accounts Payable - HUD PHA Programs                           -                              -   

 332  Account Payable - PHA Projects                           -                              -   

 333  Accounts Payable - Other Government                  570,248                            -   

 341  Tenant Security Deposits                  373,991                            -   
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The Housing Authority of the City of Trenton  (NJ005)

TRENTON, NJ
Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary

Fiscal Year 
End:  12/31/2020

14.PHC Public 
Housing CARES 

Act Funding

14.870 Resident 
Opportunity and 

Supportive 
Services

14.892 Choice 
Neighborhood 
Planning Grant

Elimination
Total Enterprise 

Fund
Project Total COCC

                           -                              -                              -                              -                      387,240 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                   2,182,922 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                      835,576 

                           -                              -                              -                (1,344,000)                             -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $          (1,344,000)  $             5,038,684 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                 19,887,271 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                      253,099 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                               -   

                               -                              -                 18,790,443 

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $           38,930,813 

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $          (1,344,000)  $           43,969,497 

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $           13,186,146 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                 44,009,574 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                        60,445 

                           -                              -                              -                              -               (27,212,114)

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $           16,857,905 

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $          (1,344,000)  $           74,013,548 

 342  Unearned Revenue                  387,240                            -   

 343  Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Capital Projects/Mortgage 
Revenue 

              2,182,922                            -   

 344  Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Operating Borrowings                           -                              -   

 345  Other Current Liabilities                           -                              -   

 346  Accrued Liabilities - Other                  835,253                         323 

 347  Inter Program - Due To               1,344,000                            -   

 348  Loan Liability - Current                           -                              -   

 310  Total Current Liabilities  $           6,147,808  $              234,876 

 

 351  Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Capital Projects/Mortgage 
Revenue

            19,887,271                            -   

 352  Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Operating Borrowings                           -                              -   

 353  Non-current Liabilities - Other                           -                              -   

 354  Accrued Compensated Absences - Non Current                  252,599                         500 

 355  Loan Liability - Non Current                           -                              -   

 356  FASB 5 Liabilities                           -                              -   

 357  Accrued Pension and OPEB Liabilities             14,552,506               4,237,937 

 350  Total Non-Current Liabilities  $         34,692,376  $           4,238,437 

 

 300  Total Liabilities  $         40,840,184  $           4,473,313 

 

 400  Deferred Inflow of Resources  $         10,816,599  $           2,369,547 

 

 508.4  Net Investment in Capital Assets             43,857,514                  152,060 

 511.4  Restricted Net Position                    60,445                            -   

 512.4  Unrestricted Net Position            (22,031,750)              (5,180,364)

 513  Total Equity - Net Assets / Position  $         21,886,209  $          (5,028,304)

 

 600  Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Equity - Net  $         73,542,992  $           1,814,556 
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The Housing Authority of the City of Trenton  (NJ005)

TRENTON, NJ
Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary

Fiscal Year 
End:  12/31/2020

14.PHC Public 
Housing CARES 

Act Funding

14.870 Resident 
Opportunity and 

Supportive 
Services

14.892 Choice 
Neighborhood 
Planning Grant

Elimination
Total Enterprise 

Fund

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $           5,529,135 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                    180,930 

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $           5,710,065 

  

              1,425,255                    26,247                  172,174                            -               13,177,890 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                 2,440,877 

                           -                              -                              -                (1,146,678)                           -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

                           -                              -                              -                   (115,734)                           -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

 $           1,425,255  $                26,247  $              172,174  $          (1,262,412)  $         15,618,767 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                           197 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                 1,167,741 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

 $           1,425,255  $                26,247  $              172,174  $          (1,262,412)  $         22,496,770 

  

                 150,000                            -                      11,375                            -                 1,792,527 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                      19,612 

                           -                              -                              -                (1,146,678)                           -   

                           -                              -                              -                   (115,734)                            (1)

                           -                              -                              -                              -                      13,004 

                           -                              -                        6,125                            -                    757,079 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                    181,782 

 91500  Employee Benefit contributions - Administrative                  525,466                  225,488 

 91600  Office Expenses                  133,737                    48,045 

 91310  Book-keeping Fee                  115,733                            -   

 91400  Advertising and Marketing                    12,114                         890 

 91200  Auditing Fees                    19,612                            -   

 91300  Management Fee               1,146,678                            -   

 

 91100  Administrative Salaries                  868,425                  762,727 

 72000  Investment Income - Restricted                           -                              -   

 70000  Total Revenue  $         19,974,150  $           2,161,356 

 71500  Other Revenue                  268,797                  898,944 

 71600  Gain or Loss on Sale of Capital Assets                           -                              -   

 71310  Cost of Sale of Assets                           -                              -   

 71400  Fraud Recovery                           -                              -   

 71200  Mortgage Interest Income                           -                              -   

 71300  Proceeds from Disposition of Assets Held for Sale                           -                              -   

 70800  Other Government Grants                           -                              -   

 71100  Investment Income - Unrestricted                         197                            -   

 70700  Total Fee Revenue  $         13,995,091  $           1,262,412 

 

 70740  Front Line Service Fee                           -                              -   

 70750  Other Fees                           -                              -   

 70720  Asset Management Fee                           -                              -   

 70730  Book Keeping Fee                           -                    115,734 

 70610  Capital Grants               2,440,877                            -   

 70710  Management Fee                           -                 1,146,678 

 

 70600  HUD PHA Operating Grants             11,554,214                            -   

 70400  Tenant Revenue - Other                  180,930                            -   

 70500  Total Tenant Revenue  $           5,710,065  $                        -   

Project Total COCC

 70300  Net Tenant Rental Revenue  $           5,529,135  $                        -   

44



The Housing Authority of the City of Trenton  (NJ005)

TRENTON, NJ
Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary

Fiscal Year 
End:  12/31/2020

14.PHC Public 
Housing CARES 

Act Funding

14.870 Resident 
Opportunity and 

Supportive 
Services

14.892 Choice 
Neighborhood 
Planning Grant

Elimination
Total Enterprise 

Fund
Project Total COCC

                           -                              -                              -                              -                    174,634 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                        2,053 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

                   20,000                            -                    154,674                            -                    433,107 

 $              170,000  $                        -    $              172,174  $          (1,262,412)  $           3,373,797 

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   $                        -   

                           -                      17,060                            -                              -                    167,820 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

                           -                        9,187                            -                              -                      78,237 

                 363,724                            -                              -                              -                    374,183 

 $              363,724  $                26,247  $                        -    $                        -    $              620,240 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                    375,515 

                 130,000                            -                              -                              -                 1,427,023 

                 100,000                            -                              -                              -                    856,329 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                    226,601 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

 $              230,000  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $           2,885,468 

                 250,000                            -                              -                              -                 2,057,992 

                 242,578                            -                              -                              -                    923,653 

                 168,953                            -                              -                              -                 1,636,711 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                    939,794 

 $              661,531  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $           5,558,150 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                    830,465 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                      41,921  95200  Protective Services - Other Contract Costs                    41,921                            -   

 

 95100  Protective Services - Labor                  830,465                            -   

 94500  Employee Benefit Contributions - Ordinary Maintenance                  939,794                            -   

 94000  Total Maintenance  $           4,870,152  $                26,467 

 94200  Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Materials and Other                  679,310                      1,765 

 94300  Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts               1,443,056                    24,702 

 

 94100  Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Labor               1,807,992                            -   

 93800  Other Utilities Expense                           -                              -   

 93000  Total Utilities  $           2,607,207  $                48,261 

 93600  Sewer                  226,395                         206 

 93700  Employee Benefit Contributions - Utilities                           -                              -   

 93400  Fuel                           -                              -   

 93500  Labor                           -                              -   

 93200  Electricity               1,256,250                    40,773 

 93300  Gas                  750,153                      6,176 

 

 93100  Water                  374,409                      1,106 

 92400  Tenant Services - Other                    10,459                            -   

 92500  Total Tenant Services  $              230,269  $                        -   

 92200  Relocation Costs                           -                              -   

 92300  Employee Benefit Contributions - Tenant Services                    69,050                            -   

 92000  Asset Management Fee $                        -    $                        -   

 92100  Tenant Services - Salaries                  150,760                            -   

 91000  Total Operating - Administrative  $           3,081,731  $           1,212,304 

 

 91810  Allocated Overhead                           -     

 91900  Other                  167,777                    90,656 

 91700  Legal Expense                    92,084                    82,550 

 91800  Travel                         105                      1,948 
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The Housing Authority of the City of Trenton  (NJ005)

TRENTON, NJ
Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary

Fiscal Year 
End:  12/31/2020

14.PHC Public 
Housing CARES 

Act Funding

14.870 Resident 
Opportunity and 

Supportive 
Services

14.892 Choice 
Neighborhood 
Planning Grant

Elimination
Total Enterprise 

Fund
Project Total COCC

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                    385,993 

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $           1,258,379 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                    370,734 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                    305,280 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                    344,880 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                      39,983 

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $           1,060,877 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                    103,251 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                    362,198 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                    285,949 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                    585,484 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                    641,515 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $           1,978,397 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                    526,335 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                    222,596 

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $              748,931 

  

 $           1,425,255  $                26,247  $              172,174  $          (1,262,412)  $         17,484,239 

  

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $           5,012,531 

  

                           -                              -                              -                              -                      63,374 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                        1,460 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -    97350  HAP Portability-In                           -                              -   

 97200  Casualty Losses - Non-capitalized                      1,460                            -   

 97300  Housing Assistance Payments                           -                              -   

 

 97100  Extraordinary Maintenance                    63,374                            -   

 

 97000  Excess of Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses  $           4,319,782  $              692,749 

 

 96900  Total Operating Expenses  $         15,654,368  $           1,468,607 

 96700  Total Interest Expense and Amortization Cost  $              748,931  $                        -   

 96710  Interest of Mortgage (or Bonds) Payable                  526,335                            -   

 96720  Interest on Notes Payable (Short and Long Term)                  222,596                            -   

 96000  Total Other General Expenses  $           1,896,865  $                81,532 

 

 96600  Bad debt - Other                  641,515                            -   

 96800  Severance Expense                           -                              -   

 96400  Bad debt - Tenant Rents                  585,484                            -   

 96500  Bad debt - Mortgages                           -                              -   

 96210  Compensated Absences                  280,666                    81,532 

 96300  Payments in Lieu of Taxes                  285,949                            -   

 

 96200  Other General Expenses                  103,251                            -   

 96140  All Other Insurance                    41,553                     (1,570)

 96100  Total insurance Premiums  $              960,834  $              100,043 

 96120  Liability Insurance                  303,941                      1,339 

 96130  Workmen's Compensation                  244,606                  100,274 

 

 96110  Property Insurance                  370,734                            -   

 95500  Employee Benefit Contributions - Protective Services                  385,993                            -   

 95000  Total Protective Services  $           1,258,379  $                        -   

 95300  Protective Services - Other                           -                              -   
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The Housing Authority of the City of Trenton  (NJ005)

TRENTON, NJ
Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary

Fiscal Year 
End:  12/31/2020

14.PHC Public 
Housing CARES 

Act Funding

14.870 Resident 
Opportunity and 

Supportive 
Services

14.892 Choice 
Neighborhood 
Planning Grant

Elimination
Total Enterprise 

Fund
Project Total COCC

                           -                              -                              -                              -                 3,104,751 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

 $           1,425,255  $                26,247  $              172,174  $          (1,262,412)  $         20,653,824 

  

                           -                              -                              -                (1,390,233)                           -   

                           -                              -                              -                 1,390,233                           -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

                           -                              -                              -                   (200,000)                           -   

                           -                              -                              -                    200,000                           -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   $                        -   

  

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $           1,842,946 

  

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $           2,108,413 

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $         15,014,959 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                             -   

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -     $                        -   

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -     $                        -   

                           -                              -                              -                              -                      16,704 

                           -                              -                              -                              -                      15,419 

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -     $                        -   

                           -                              -                              -                   1,695,877 

                           -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                               -   

                           -                              -                              -                      967,596 

                           -                              -                              -                               -    13901  Replacement Housing Factor Funds                           -                              -   

 13510  CFFP Debt Service Payments                  967,596                            -   

 11640  Furniture & Equipment - Administrative Purchases                           -                              -   

 11650  Leasehold Improvements Purchases                           -                              -   

 11620  Building Purchases               1,695,877                            -   

 11610  Land Purchases $                        -    $                        -   

 11190  Unit Months Available                    16,704                            -   

 11210  Number of Unit Months Leased                    15,419                            -   

 11180  Housing Assistance Payments Equity $                        -    $                        -   

 11170  Administrative Fee Equity $                        -    $                        -   

 11040  Prior Period Adjustments, Equity Transfers and Correction of 
Errors

                          -                              -   

 11020  Required Annual Debt Principal Payments  $           2,108,413  $                        -   

 11030  Beginning Equity  $         19,523,630  $          (4,508,671)

 10000  Excess (Deficiency) of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total 
Expenses

 $           2,362,579  $             (519,633)

 

 10100  Total Other financing Sources (Uses)  $           1,200,000  $          (1,200,000)

 

 10093  Transfers between Program and Project - In               1,200,000              (1,200,000)

 10094  Transfers between Project and Program - Out                           -                              -   

 10091  Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer In                  200,000                            -   

 10092  Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer Out                 (200,000)                            -   

 10070  Extraordinary Items, Net Gain/Loss                           -                              -   

 10080  Special Items (Net Gain/Loss)                           -                              -   

 10010  Operating Transfer In               1,390,233                            -   

 10020  Operating transfer Out              (1,390,233)                            -   

 90000  Total Expenses  $         18,811,571  $           1,480,989 

 

 97500  Fraud Losses                           -                              -   

 97400  Depreciation Expense               3,092,369                    12,382 
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THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TRENTON 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION – PENSION PLAN 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

 

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 

 
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020

Authority's proportion of the

  net pension liability (%) 0.0486602913% 0.0454267772% 0.0407932614% 0.0420553641% 0.0419750918% 0.0431758480%

Authority's proportionate share

  of the net pension liability ($) 10,923,260$      13,454,108$      9,496,019$        8,280,492$       7,563,275$       7,040,852$       

Authority's covered payroll* 3,748,638$        3,411,369$        3,072,407$        3,288,632$       3,019,926$       3,143,383$       

Authority's proportionate share of the

  net pension liability as a percentage of its

  covered payroll* 291.39% 394.39% 309.07% 251.79% 250.45% 223.99%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

  of the total pension liability 47.93% 40.14% 48.09% 46.40% 56.27% 58.32%

 
* Covered Payroll is defined in GASBS No. 82, Paragraph 5 (an Amendment to GASBS No. 68) as the payroll on which contributions to the plan are based. 

 
Note:  GASBS No. 68 was implemented as of the year ended 2015.  The schedule is being built prospectively.  Ultimately, ten years of data will 
be shown. 
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THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TRENTON 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION – PENSION PLAN 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

 

Schedule of Employer’s Required Contributions 

 
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 

2015

December 31, 

2016

December 31, 

2017

December 31, 

2018

December 31, 

2019

December 31, 

2020

Contractually required contribution 421,743$         418,348$        403,565$          377,906$         418,314$         408,294$         

Contributions in relation to the contractually

  required contribution 421,743 418,348 403,565 377,906 418,314 408,294

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                 -$                -$                  -$                 -$                 -$                 

Authority's covered payroll* 3,779,059$      3,536,331$     3,281,016$       2,970,959$      3,094,038$      3,143,141$      

Contributions as a percentage of covered-payroll* 11.16% 11.83% 12.30% 12.72% 13.52% 12.99%

 
* Covered Payroll is defined in GASBS No. 82, Paragraph 5 (an Amendment to GASBS No. 68) as the payroll on which contributions to the plan are based. 
 
Note:  GASBS No. 68 was implemented as of the year ended 2015.  The schedule is being built prospectively.  Ultimately, ten years of data will 
be shown. 
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THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TRENTON 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION – PENSION PLAN 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

 

Changes in Plan benefit terms and changes in assumptions applied since the previous actuarial valuation are summarized below in the following 

Schedule: 

 

Schedule of Changes in Benefit Terms and Assumptions Applied 
 

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial

Valuation Valuation Valuation Valuation Valuation Valuation

as of as of as of as of as of as of

July 1, 2014 July 1, 2015 July 1, 2016 July 1, 2017 July 1, 2018 July 1, 2019

Change in Benefit Terms None None None None None None

Change in Assumptions

Inflation Rate 3.04% 3.08% 2.25% 2.25% 2.75% 2.75%

Salary Increases       

   Through 2026 2.15 - 4.40% 1.65 - 4.15% 1.65 - 4.15% 1.65 - 4.15% 2.00 - 6.00% 2.00 - 6.00%

   Thereafter 3.15 - 5.40% 2.65 - 5.15% 2.65 - 5.15% 2.65 - 5.15% 3.00 - 7.00% 3.00 - 7.00%

Investment Rate of Return 7.90% 7.65% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
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THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TRENTON 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION – OPEB PLAN 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

 

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net OPEB Liability 
Fiscal Fiscal

Year Ended Year Ended

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019

Authority's proportion of the

  net OPEB liability (%) 0.094628% 0.086738%

Authority's proportionate share

  of the net OPEB liability ($) 14,825,007$     11,749,591$     

Authority's covered-employee payroll* 3,385,351$       3,529,313$       

Authority's proportionate share of the

  net OPEB liability as a percentage of its

  covered-employee payroll* 437.92% 332.91%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

  of the total OPEB liability 1.97% 1.98%

 
 

Schedule of Employer’s Required Contributions 
Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 

2018

December 31, 

2019

Contractually required contribution 449,241$       283,146$       

Contributions in relation to the contractually

  required contribution 449,241 283,146

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$              -$              

Authority's covered-employee payroll* 3,410,941$     3,785,296$     

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll* 13.17% 7.48%

 
* Covered-employee Payroll is defined in GASBS No. 75, Paragraph 246 as the payroll of employees that are provided with 
OPEB through the plan. 

 
Note:  GASBS No. 75 was implemented as of the year ended 2018.  These schedules are being built 
prospectively.  Ultimately, ten years of data will be shown. 
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THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TRENTON 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION – OPEB PLAN 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

 

Changes in Plan benefit terms and changes in assumptions applied since the previous actuarial valuation 

are summarized below in the following Schedule: 

 

Schedule of Changes in Benefit Terms and Assumptions Applied 
 

Actuarial Actuarial

Valuation Valuation

as of as of

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018

Change in Benefit Terms None None

Change in Assumptions

Inflation Rate 2.50% 2.50%

Salary Increases   

   Through 2026 1.65 - 8.98% 2.00 - 6.00%

   Thereafter 2.65 - 9.98% 3.00 - 7.00%
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THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TRENTON 
TRENTON, NEW JERSEY 

 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 

AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 
 

 
Section I: Summary of Auditor’s Results: 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Type of auditor’s report issued: Qualified 
 
Internal Control over financial reporting: 
 
Are material weaknesses identified?         Yes    X   No 
 
Are significant deficiencies that are not considered 
 to be material weaknesses identified?         Yes    X   None 
  Reported 
Is noncompliance that could have a material effect 
 on the financial statements identified?         Yes    X   No 
 
 
FEDERAL AWARDS 
 
Internal control over major programs: 
 
Are material weaknesses identified?          Yes    X   No 
 
Are significant deficiencies that are not considered  
  to be material weaknesses identified?          Yes    X   None 
  Reported 
Type of report issued on compliance with requirements 
  applicable to each major program:    Unmodified 
 
Are there any audit findings that are required to be 
  reported in accordance with 2 CFR Section 200.516(a) 
  of the Uniform Guidance?           Yes    X   No 
 
Identification of major programs: 
 
Name of Federal Program Assistance Listing No. 
Public Housing Program 14.850a 
Public Housing CARES Act Funding 14.PHC 
Capital Fund Program 14.872 
  
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750,000 
 
Is the auditee identified as a low-risk auditee?         Yes    X  No 
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THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TRENTON 
TRENTON, NEW JERSEY 

 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 

AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 
 
 
Section II: Financial Statement Findings: 

 
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings: 

 
Finding 2019-001 – Overstatement of Capital Assets 

 
Condition 
 
During 2019, the Authority disposed of its Page Homes dwelling property via a land lease for demolition 
and redevelopment.  The applicable assets had a total cost basis of $7,753,713 and accumulated 
depreciation of $6,727,859.  The Authority did not remove the cost basis or accumulated depreciation 
from its general ledger or Unaudited Financial Data Schedule. 
 
Current Year Status 
 
The Authority appears to have implemented its corrective actions regarding this Finding including 
periodic reviews capital asset holdings.  This Finding is not restated. 
 
 
Current Year Findings and Questioned Costs: 
 
None 
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THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TRENTON 
TRENTON, NEW JERSEY 

 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 

AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 
 
 
Section III: Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs: 
 
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings: 
 
None 
 
 
Current Year Findings and Questioned Costs: 
 
None 
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